CULTURE, HERITAGE AND LIBRARIES COMMITTEE

Monday, 28 October 2013

Minutes of the meeting of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 11.30am

Present

Members:

John Scott (Chairman)

Deputy Michael Cassidy

Deputy Billy Dove

Lucy Frew

Judith Pleasance

Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines Deputy Dr Giles Shilson

Wendy Hyde Mark Wheatley

Jamie Ingham Clark Alderman David Graves (Ex-Officio

Member)

Officers:

Matthew Pitt - Town Clerk's Department
Andrew Wild - City Surveyor's Department
Julian Kverndal - City Surveyor's Department
Nick Bodger - Culture, Heritage and Libraries

Carol Boswarthack - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department
Geoff Pick - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department

David Wight - Culture, Heritage and Libraries
Andrew Buckingham - Public Relations Department

Jacquie Campbell - Community and Children's Services Department

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Mark Boleat, Deputy Anthony Eskenzi, Brian Harris, Vivienne Littlechild, Deputy Catherine McGuinness, Sylvia Moys, Alderman Dr Andrew Parmley, Ann Pembroke, Emma Price, Deputy Gerald Pulman, Deputy Richard Regan and Alderman William Russell.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

John Scott and Jeremy Mayhew declared an interest as Trustees of the City of London Festival.

Judith Pleasance declared an interest as a Member of the Clockmakers Livery.

3. MINUTES

The public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 1 July were approved.

Matters arising:

Exhibition Hall 2

The Chairman reported that a Feasibility study would be coming back to the Committee at a future meeting.

Timber Staircase

The Chairman reported that this installation, approved at the last meeting, was placed on the Southbank and not at St Paul's.

Pocketbook Survey

The Chairman informed Members that a report detailing the results of the Pocketbook Survey would be brought to the next meeting of the Committee.

4. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk detailing action taken using delegated authority and urgency procedures since the last meeting.

5. **GUILDHALL LIBRARY**

This item was deferred until the next meeting.

6. CITY OF LONDON FESTIVAL 2013 PROGRAMME

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries providing Members with details of the 187 events that were part of the City of London Festival 2013.

The Committee extended its thanks to the outgoing Director of the Festival for his 8 years of service to the City.

7. CITY OF LONDON FESTIVAL - INTRODUCTION OF NEW DIRECTOR

The Director of the City of London Festival introduced himself to the Committee for the first time and spoke of his vision for the future of the Festival.

The Director highlighted a change of emphasis he wanted to engineer for the Festival towards pop-up venues, new and informal venues alongside historic formal locations, the introduction of spoken word and other literary elements and the showcasing of the City's great depth of choral talent.

In response to the Chairman's question, the Director responded that the climate for private sponsorship was slowly improving and the Festival was looking to new media partners to enhance awareness within London.

In response to a Member's question, the Director responded that his team were working closely with City Libraries to progress the literary element of the Festival.

8. BUSINESS PLAN 2012-2013 OUTTURN REPORT

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries concerning the 2012-13 Business Plan outturn. The report

demonstrated the outturn performance achieved against the business plan and highlighted a successful year in all areas across the department.

9. CITY OF LONDON VISITOR STRATEGY

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries seeking approval to the City of London Visitor Strategy 2013-17.

RESOLVED – That the City of London Visitor Strategy 2013-17 be adopted as a Strategic Corporate Document.

10. REVIEW OF KEATS HOUSE COLLECTIONS DEVELOPMENT POLICY

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries seeking approval to the updated Collections Development Policy at Keats House.

The Principal Curator at Keats House advised that the Policy had been updated to bring it up to date with the latest Arts Council England templates and the Museum Accreditation Standard.

RESOLVED – that the updated Collections Development Strategy Policy be approved.

11. WEDDINGS AT KEATS HOUSE

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries asking Members to consider the best route forward with proposals to hold wedding ceremonies at Keats House.

The Director of Visitor Services reported that at a recent Keats House Consultative Committee meeting and at a special residents meeting, there had been strong feeling against the proposals from a small group. He added that the majority of the local population remained neutral.

The Director drew attention to the current budget deficit at Keats House and highlighted the importance of the House generating its own income. He added that some residents had suggested alternative ways of raising money for the House and officers felt these should be explored prior to going ahead with the wedding plans.

In response to a Member's question, the Principal Curator advised that she anticipated less disruption from a wedding ceremony than from some of the existing private events at the House.

RESOLVED, That:

- a) officers be tasked to undertake a feasibility assessment of alternative fundraising plans suggested by local residents and report back to the Committee at the first meeting of the New Year; and
- b) the decision regarding whether to hold wedding ceremonies at Keats House be delayed pending the above mentioned report.

12. RESULTS OF TRIENNIAL OPINION POLLING OF THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION'S KEY AUDIENCES

The Committee received a report of the Director of Public Relations summarising the results of the latest polling of key City audiences, conducted by TNS between April and June 2013.

The Head of Barbican and Community Libraries noted that she felt the sample data was not particularly useful but added she would continue to analyse it for patterns. She highlighted a decline in satisfaction at some libraries but linked this to a disruption to services at those locations.

She further highlighted that she would be conducting a full survey of library users across the City at a future date.

13. PORTSOKEN EARLY INTERVENTION REVIEW FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services regarding the Porksoken Early Intervention Review findings and recommendations.

The Director of Community and Children's Services advised the Committee that the proposals to join up facilities in Portsoken marked a new joined up effort to link the two communities at Mansell Street and Middlesex Street via Artizan Library.

RESOLVED – That,

- a) the Portsoken Early Intervention Review, attached as Appendix One to this report, and any comments received by partners, be noted:
- b) the principle of the six priorities for action set out in the review, be endorsed as set out below;
 - a. A coordinated approach be taken for the commissioning and delivery of services, bringing the services, providers and facilities in the ward together under a 'One Portsoken' umbrella;
 - b. better use be made of the assets and facilities in the ward;
 - c. the development of a health education strategy targeting those residents and city workers who are most vulnerable, such as the elderly, and also young people, who can be difficult to access, be authorised:
 - d. investment in the community initiatives that help to maintain a sense of community on both estates in the ward, be continued;
 - e. a coordinated service that brings City Advice and Adult Learning together to help residents manage their benefits and budgets be put in place:
 - f. a targeted employment and skills programme to continue to provide access to employment support be put in place;
- c) recommendation 1.1 in the review that the Portsoken Health and Community Centre should be managed by the Centre Manager of the

- Artizan Street Library and Community Centre from 1st April 2014 onwards be agreed; and
- d) the Director of Community and Children's Services decision to waive the City's Procurement Regulations in accordance with Regulation 12 to allow the appointment of Rocket Science to support the establishment of a 'One Portsoken Forum', be endorsed.

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

There were three items urgent items of business.

Cart Marking

The Chairman advised the Committee that he had been invited by the Cart Makers to the Cart Marking Ceremony and he expected this to continue for future Chairmen.

City Arts Initiative Proposal – Silent Cacophony

The Committee were asked to give approval to a one day installation to mark Remembrance Day.

RESOLVED – That the application for the installation of Silent Cacophony be approved.

Member Visits to Cultural Assets

The Chairman urged Members, new and longstanding to contact the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries should they wish to be guided around any of the City Corporation's cultural assets.

16. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

<u>Item No.</u>	<u>Paragraph No.</u>
18 – 22	3
23 & 24	-

17. NON PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2013 were approved.

18. CLOCKMAKERS REPORT 28 OCTOBER 2013 - FINAL

The Committee approved a report of the City Surveyor.

19. GATEWAY 4- DETAILED OPTIONS APPRAISAL THE LORD MAYOR'S STATE COACH, SEMI STATE COACHES AND DRESS CHARIOTS

The Committee approved a report of the City Surveyor.

20. **DETAILED DESIGN - GUILDHALL ART GALLERY: HERITAGE GALLERY GATEWAY 4C**

The Committee approved a report of the City Surveyor.

21. TOWER BRIDGE AND MONUMENT PRICING REVIEW 2014/15

The Committee approved a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries.

22. OUTCOME REPORT - TOWER BRIDGE ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS

The Committee received a report of the City Surveyor.

23. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

24. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no urgent items.

The meeting closed at 12.40pm
Chairman

Contact Officer: Matthew Pitt

tel. no.: 020 7332 1425

Matthew.Pitt@cityoflondon.gov.uk